IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

UNEMPLOYMENT APPEALS COMMISSION,


Petitioner,

vs.

Case No. 69,462

JOANNA W. CASSADY,

Respondent.

NOV 7 1988
By 
Deputy Clerk

Petition for Discretionary Review of a Decision of the
District Court of Appeal of the Third District of Florida

INITIAL BRIEF ON THE MERITS

OF

PETITIONER

UNEMPLOYMENT APPEALS COMMISSION

John D. Maher
Ashley Building, Suite 221
1321 Executive Center Drive, East
Tallahassee, Florida 32301-8247
(904) 487-2685

Attorney for Petitioner
Unemployment Appeals Commission

STATEMENTS OF THE CASE AND THE FACTS

Respondent Joanna Cassady filed a claim for unemployment compensation benefits on December 13, 1983. (R.1). She was initially determined qualified for benefits. (R.9). Her former employer protested the claim. (R.13). As a result of the new information received, Cassady was determined disqualified. (R.14). As a result of the disqualification decision, an overpayment determination was issued. (R.15). Cassady timely appealed the determination and a formal administrative hearing was held. (R.18-296). The hearing officer upheld the overpayment determination and further held that recovery of it could not be waived. (R.314-18). Cassady timely appealed the hearing officer's decision. (R.319). On appeal the Unemployment Appeals Commission affirmed the hearing officer's decision. (R.30).

Cassady appealed the Commission's order to the Third District Court of Appeal. (R.321). The Third District Court of Appeal reversed the Commission's order and certified that its decision expressly and directly conflicted with Sheppard v. State Department of Labor and Employment Security, 442 So.2d 1114 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983). (R.324).

The Commission timely invoked the court's discretionary jurisdiction under Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Unemployment compensation overpayments occur when initial determinations favorable to claimants are reversed. Section 443.151(6)(b), Florida Statutes (1983), requires recipients of overpayments to repay them. The Division of Unemployment Compensation, at its discretion, may demand direct repayment of the overpayment or may recover it by recouping it from future benefits that may become available to the overpayment recipient. Id. Section 443.151(6)(c), provides that the Division of Unemployment Compensation cannot recover overpayments by recouping from future benefits when certain circumstances are present. No similar provision is contained in the statute which would permit waiver of recovery of the overpayment altogether.

In Sagaert v. State Department of Labor and Employment Security, 418 So.2d 1228 (Fla. 3d DCA 1982), the Third District Court of Appeal held that the statutory scheme was illogical and absurd and refused to follow it. The court held that the Division must completely waive recovery of overpayments when attendant circumstances preclude recouping of the overpayment from benefits which might become available to the recipient of the overpayment.

In Sheppard v. State Department of Labor and Employment Security, 442 So.2d 1114 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983), the Fourth District Court of Appeal expressly disagreed with Sagaert and

held that the Third District exceeded its authority by judicially amending the statute. The Second District joined the Fourth District in Sheppard v. Unemployment Appeals Commission, 492 So.2d 827 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986).

The Third District Court of Appeal followed Sagaert in Garcia v. Department of Labor and Employment Security, 426 So.2d 1171 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983). In Comer v. State Unemployment Appeals Commission, 481 So.2d 67 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1985), and Renelus v. Florida Unemployment Appeals Commission, 448 So.2d 629 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1986), the Third District Court of Appeal reaffirmed Sagaert and Garcia and certified its decisions as expressly and directly conflicting with Sheppard. Those cases are presently pending before the Court (Case Nos. 69,462 and 68,442).

The following discussion will demonstrate that the Fourth District Court of Appeal correctly observed that the statute does not provide for outright waiver of recovery of overpayments and such relief cannot constitutionally be legislated by the courts of the State of Florida. The decisions of the Third District Court of Appeal holding to the contrary must be overturned. The decision under review here must be reversed.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE I

SECTION 443.151(6), FLORIDA STATUTES
(1983), DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR WAIVER OF
RECOVERY OF UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION
OVERPAYMENTS.

The unemployment compensation program is a cooperative federal-state effort to provide financial assistance to certain unemployed workers. Federal regulations require prompt payment of benefits to eligible applicants. 20 C.F.R. §640.5 (1980). The states cannot suspend payment of benefits pending the outcome of appeal proceedings. California Department of Human Resources Development v. Java, 402 U.S. 121 (1971); 42 U.S.C. §503(b)(2). Accordingly, Section 443.151(5)(a), Florida Statutes (1983), provides:

(5) PAYMENT OF BENEFIT. --

(a) Benefits shall be promptly paid
in accordance with a determination or
redetermination regardless of any appeal
or pending appeal.

* * *

Overpayments inevitably result when initial determinations favorable to claimants are overturned.

The liability of overpayment recipients to make restitution in nonfraudulent cases is found at Section 443.151(6)(b), Florida Statutes (1983):

(b) If any person, other than by
reason of his fraud, has received any sum

as benefits under this chapter to which, under a redetermination or decision pursuant to this section, he has been found not entitled, he shall be liable to repay such sum to the division for and on behalf of the trust fund or, in the discretion of the division, shall have such sum deducted from any future benefits payable to him under this chapter. No such recovery or recoupment of such sum may be effected after two years from the date of such redetermination or decision.

The provision does not permit the Division to waive recovery of overpayments. Section 443.151(6)(d), Florida Statutes (1983), authorizes the Division to resort to civil action to recover overpayments.

The statute also permits the Division, at its discretion, to recover the overpayment by recouping it from future benefits to which an overpaid claimant may become entitled. When the Division elects to recover the overpayment by recoupment from future benefits, Section 443.151(6)(c), Florida Statutes (1983), provides:

(c) No recoupment from future benefits shall be had if such sum was received by such person without fault on his part and such recoupment would defeat the purpose of this chapter or would be against equity and good conscience.

In Sagaert the Third District Court of Appeal refused to apply the statute as written. The court stated:

We can discern no logical reason for granting the Section 443.151(6)(c), supra, defenses of statutory purpose and equity and good conscience to someone who

will still be receiving benefits, while withholding these defenses from someone whose benefits are terminated and who is required to repay sums to the Division. (footnotes omitted).

418 So.2d at 1230. The court further held that the statute as written would create "an illogical or absurd result." Id. The court did not strike the statute as unconstitutional.

In Sheppard, the Fourth District Court of Appeal criticized the Sagaert opinion as follows:

We respectfully believe the foregoing interpretation is an inappropriate invasion by the judiciary into the legislative arena, contrary to the constitutional mandate which separates the two respective governmental powers. The language in paragraph (b) does not compel the division to exercise its discretion by seeking recoupment rather than repayment. It plainly enables the division to proceed with efforts to effect payment or, in the alternative, deduct sums already received from future benefits which may become available.

442 So.2d at 1116. The Sheppard court noted that its opinion directly conflicted with Sagaert.

In Comer and Renelus the Third District Court of Appeal reaffirmed its decision in Sagaert and certified its decisions as expressly and directly conflicting with Sheppard. The Third District followed the same course in this case.

The decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Sheppard is consistent with the fundamental principle of American jurisprudence that the making, amending, and

repealing of laws are matters exclusively delegated to the legislative branch and cannot constitutionally be assumed by the judicial branch of government. In Flagler v. Flagler, 94 So.2d 592 (Fla. 1957), the Florida Supreme Court reviewed a decision of a lower court which refused to follow a law allowing a wealthy parent to disinherit a penniless minor child. The court stated:

[We] cannot agree that courts of equity have any right or power under the law of Florida to issue such order as it considers to be in the best interest of "social justice" at the particular moment without regard to established law. This court has no authority to change the law simply because the law seems to us to be inadequate in some particular case.

Id. at 594.

The same proposition was held applicable when the party burdened by the legislative act was a municipality. In State v. Fort Pierce, 88 So.2d 135 (Fla. 1956), the court held,

It is not the province of this court to rewrite the acts of the Legislature. Relief from restrictive provisions must necessarily come from the legislative rather than the judicial branch of the government.

Id. at 137.

The rationale underlying the Florida Supreme Court's refusal to tolerate judicial encroachment into legislative matters was most strongly expressed in Pepper v. Pepper, 66 So.2d 280 (Fla. 1953):

The tendency to reach out and grasp for power in the sphere of governmental activity; for one branch of Government to encroach upon, or absorb, the powers of another, is the means by which free governments are destroyed. * * * It is the duty of the Judicial Department, more than any other, to maintain and preserve those provisions of the organic law for the separation of the three great departments of Government.

Id. at 284.

Contrary to the doctrine of separation of governmental powers, the Third District Court of Appeal judicially amended Section 443.151(6)(c), Florida Statutes (1983). The Third District's judicial decree was not based upon any provision of the United States Constitution or the Constitution of the State of Florida. It was based upon sheer judicial power. Such unauthorized exercise of judicial power cannot be left unrestrained. It must be quashed.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE II

SECTION 443.151(6), FLORIDA STATUTES
(1983), DOES NOT VIOLATE THE SUPREMACY
CLAUSE OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.

It has been argued that paragraph (c) of the statute is preempted by federal law. Article 6, Section 2 of the United States Constitution prohibits the states from enacting legislation which is repugnant to laws enacted by Congress. McCulloch v. Maryland, 4 Wheat. 316, 436 (1819). In order for a state law to be preempted by a federal law, however, there must be a direct and positive conflict between the two that prevents them from being reconciled. Sligh v. Kirkwood, 65 Fla. 123, 61 So. 185, aff'd 237 U.S. 52 (1913). To create such a conflict, the state law and the federal law must address the same subject matter. It is not sufficient that they address similar subjects. Id.

Section 443.151(6)(c), Florida Statutes, is not preempted by Title II, Section 204 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. §404). The subject matter of Title II of the Social Security Act is reflected by its title: "Federal Old-Age, Survivors, and Disability Insurance Benefits." Title II has no application to the unemployment compensation insurance program. Section 204 of Title II does not apply to all general welfare benefit programs contained in the Social Security Act. By its own terms, the provision is

applicable only to persons receiving overpayments under Title II.

Title III (42 U.S.C. §§501-03), Title IX (42 U.S.C. §§1101-1109), and Title XII (42 U.S.C. §§1321-24) of the Social Security Act and Chapter 23 of the Internal Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. §§3301-11) are the federal laws governing unemployment compensation, none of which address the question of overpayments. Such a provision was necessary for the Old-Age, Survivors, and Disability Insurance Benefits Program because the program is administered exclusively by the federal government. In contrast, administration of the unemployment compensation programs has been delegated by Congress to the states. In New York Telephone Company v. New York State Department of Labor, 440 U.S. 519 (1979), the Supreme Court held:

The voluminous history of the Social Security Act made it abundantly clear that Congress intended that the several States to have broad freedom in setting up the types of unemployment compensation that they wish. We further noted that when Congress wished to impose or forbid a condition of compensation, it did so explicitly; the absence of such an explicit condition was therefore accepted as a strong indication that Congress did not intend to restrict the States' freedom to legislate in this area. (footnotes omitted).

Id. at 537-38.

Since the issue is governed by statutory, not common law, an exhaustive survey and analysis of how the other states'

unemployment compensation programs address the overpayment issue would not be profitable. A random sampling of other jurisdictions does demonstrate, however, that the legislatures of the various states have adopted a variety of approaches to the issue. For example, where, as is true in these cases, fraud is not present, Louisiana vests almost unbridled discretion in its agency to waive overpayments. La. Rev. Stat. §1713(c). Maine's statute permits waiver if the recipient of the overpayment is without fault and recovery would defeat the purpose of the statute or would be against equity and good conscience. Me. Rev. Stat., Tit. 26, §1051(5). Ohio permits waiver only in those instances where the overpayment is the result of the agency's correction of a typographical error in the original determination allowing benefits. Ohio Rev. Code §4141.35 (B)(1) (1969). Kentucky and South Carolina statutes contain no overpayment waiver provisions. Ky. Rev. Stat. §341.415; S.C. Code §41-41-40.

These provisions of other states are not cited for the proposition that Florida's statute represents either the majority or the minority view on the subject. If constitutionally permissible, the Florida Legislature's approach to the problem must be upheld even if it places the State of Florida in a minority of one. The variety of treatments of the issue by the various jurisdictions does demonstrate, however, that Congress has not decreed a uniform

national treatment of the subject and thereby preempted the states from adopting their own solutions.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE III

SECTION 443.151(6), FLORIDA STATUTES
(1983), DOES NOT VIOLATE THE EQUAL
PROTECTION CLAUSES OF THE UNITED STATES
CONSTITUTION AND THE FLORIDA
CONSTITUTION.

It has been argued before the Third District Court of Appeal that there is no rational basis for Section 443.151(6). In Florida High School Activity Association, Inc. v. Thomas, 434 So.2d 306 (Fla. 1983), the Supreme Court of Florida held:

Under a "rational basis" standard of review a court should inquire only whether it is conceivable that the regulatory classification bears some rational relationship to a legitimate state purpose. * * * The burden is on the party challenging the statute or regulation to show that there is no conceivable, factual predicate which would rationally support the classification under attack. Where the challenging party fails to meet this difficult burden, the statute or regulation must be sustained. (citations omitted).

Id. at 308.

The statute makes all recipients of overpayments liable to make restitution to the Division. It further provides that the Division may resort to civil action to collect overpayments from all recipients. It finally provides that the Division in its discretion may elect to recover overpayments by recouping them from future benefits which become available to the overpayment recipient. The statute

contains no provision for outright waiver of overpayments. It does provide, however, that recoupment from future benefits shall not be effected if the overpayment was received without fault on the claimant's part and recoupment would defeat the purpose of the chapter or would be against equity and good conscience. §443.151(6)(c), Fla. Stat. (1983). The statute does not discriminate with respect to which overpayment recipients must make restitution. It merely discriminates with respect to the type of assets which may be attached by the Division. A distinction is made between unemployment compensation benefits payable to a claimant and all other assets of the claimant. The distinction is obviously founded upon the principle expressed in Section 443.051(2), Florida Statutes (1983), which provides:

BENEFITS NOT ALIENABLE. -- Except as provided in subsection (3), benefits due under this chapter shall not be assigned, pledged, encumbered, released, or commuted and shall, except as otherwise provided in this chapter, be exempt from all claims of creditors and from levy, execution, or attachment, or other remedy for recovery or collection of a debt, which exemption may not be waived.

With two exceptions, unemployment compensation benefits are absolutely protected from all creditors of the claimant. The exceptions are child support obligations provided for in Section 443.051(3), Florida Statutes (1983), and unemployment compensation overpayments provided in Section 443.151(6),

Florida Statutes (1983). Since the legislature has absolutely protected unemployment benefits from virtually all other creditors, it stands to reason that such benefits would be accessible to the Division for recovery of overpayments only under certain circumstances.

Superficially it could be argued that discrimination between persons currently entitled to receive benefits and those who are not currently entitled to benefits is justified because the overall statutory scheme is designed to assist those unemployed workers who are qualified to receive benefits. §443.021, Fla. Stat (1983). The claimant in this case was not eligible for benefits. She was disqualified from receiving unemployment benefits because she was receiving temporary total disability compensation. There is an obvious rational basis for a statutory scheme designed to assist persons unemployed through no fault of their own to discriminate in favor of persons eligible to receive benefits, at least to the extent of those benefits, and against persons who are disqualified from receiving benefits.

It must be stressed, however, that the statute discriminates on the basis of the assets being attached, not the morality or the ability of the overpayment recipient to pay the indebtedness. Since need is not a consideration used to determine eligibility for benefits, some eligible claimants may have substantial financial assets. Such assets

are subject to attachment by the Division. Similarly, some individuals who are ineligible for benefits may be penniless. Their financial position may make them "judgment proof," but it does not provide them a defense to their indebtedness. See e.g., Carson v. Jarnham, 119 Fla. 1, 160 So. 520 (1935).