IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 69,462

| UNEMPLOYMENT APPEALS COMMISSION, | | |
|----------------------------------|---------------|-----------|
| Petitioner, |) NOV 15 | \ |
| Vs. |) CLERK, SUPR | Ţ. |
| JOANNA W. CASSADY, |) By Deputy | |
| Respondent. |) pakak | Vicinia 3 |
| |) | |

On petition for Discretionary Review of a Decision of the District Court of Appeal of the Third District of Florida

ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

JOANNA W. CASSADY

Donald M. Papy Attorney for Respondent 19 West Flagler Street Suite 802 Miami, Florida 33130 (305) 577-0100

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

Claimant submits the following to clarify the Commission's Statement of the Case and of the Facts:

Claimant, who is deaf, was found qualified for benefits in January 1984. (R 9) The employer agreed that, due to a previous neck and back on-the-job injury, she was only able to perform light duty work, and that since December 1983, the employer was unable to provide that type of work any longer. (R 7-8) Claimant was therefore not deemed to be quilty of "misconduct," and began receiving benefits for the period beginning in December 1983. (R 9) She was never informed that in the event that benefits might in the future be deemed to have been improperly paid, she would be subject to an action by the Division for overpayment. No statutory provision nor Division regulation has been found which requires notice to claimants that repayment will be sought in the event of overpayment. As with all claimants deemed eligible, Respondent sought suitable employment and complied with all Division requirements. See, §443.101, Fla. Stat.

Subsequently, in March 1984 the United States Department of Labor awarded claimant retroactive benefits under the Federal Employees Compensation Act (FECA) due to her job-related disability. (R 97) The Federal claims examiner agreed that claimant could perform light duty work. (R 102) In April 1984 claimant's union representative apprised the Florida Division of Unemployment Compensation in writing that claimant had received benefits under FECA. (R 96) Later, the union representative and the claimant again informed the Division, by letter, that claimant

was receiving FECA benefits (R 98), and claimant also completed a Division form to that effect. (R 206) A letter from the Department of Labor informed claimant that she was receiving a retroactive award, for the period from February to May, and future benefits beginning in May. (R 100) An enclosure to that letter informed claimant to seek employment consistent with her physical ability. (R 101)

Thereafter, the Division sought repayment of all unemployment benefits solely on the grounds that she received Federal worker's compensation benefits covering the same period. §443.101 (3)(b), Fla. Stat. (erroneously cited as §443.06(3)(b)(1) (R 15)

The appeals referee refused to allow as a defense to the repayment request that it would frustrate the purpose of the statute or violate equity or good conscience, but noted that "although [she] might be entitled to relief on equitable grounds, he was 'without power to waive the repayment of an overpayment.'

Cassady v. Florida Unemployment Appeals Commission, Case No. 85-2813 (Fla. 3d DCA September 30, 1986)(quoting referee's decision) (R 314-18). The referee's decision was upheld by the Commission (R 330), but reversed by the Third District. The Court held that claimant should have been allowed to raise those defenses and remanded the case, while certifying its decision as expressly and directly conflicting with Sheppard v. State Department of Labor and Employment Security, 442 So.2d 1114 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983).

This case is before this Court upon the Commission's petition to invoke discretionary jurisdiction pursuant to Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

PREFACE

The following words and symbols will be used throughout:

- "Claimant" will refer to Respondent, Joanna W. Cassady.
- "Employer" will refer to the U.S. Postal Service.
- "Commission" will refer to Petitioner, Unemployment

 Appeals Commission, and "Division" will refer to the Division of

 Unemployment Compensation.

"Fla. Stat." will refer to Florida Statutes (1985).

"R" will refer to the Record on Appeal.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT*

Federal statutes require that States pay unemployment benefits "when due." The United States Supreme Court has held this means payment must be made upon the earliest favorable determination to a claimant because Congress intended claimants have the right to immediately spend these funds.

Upon an ultimate determination that claimant was not eligible, a State may seek repayment or recoupment. Claimants, however, should be allowed to present a defense that repayment under the claimant's circumstances would defeat the purpose of the statute or be against equity or good conscience.

Even an initial notice that the State will demand repayment or recoupment in the event of a reversal of the favorable decision, does not bar the claimant's right to present such defenses.

^{*.} Claimant adopts by reference the Argument contained in the answer brief of Respondent Pierre Renelus in <u>Unemployment</u> <u>Appeals Commission v. Renelus</u>, Florida Supreme Court, Case No. 68,442. Claimant's Argument here supplements the Argument contained in that answer brief.

ARGUMENT

THE FLORIDA UNEMPLOYMENT STATUTE MUST BE READ TO ALLOW CLAIMANTS TO RAISE A DEFENSE TO REPAYMENT, WHEN REPAYMENT WOULD DEFEAT THE PURPOSE OF THE STATUTE OR VIOLATE EQUITY OR GOOD CONSCIENCE, IN ORDER TO COMPORT WITH THE PURPOSE OF THE FEDERAL MANDATE REQUIRING PAYMENT OF BENEFITS "WHEN DUE": THAT CLAIMANTS RECEIVE AND SPEND CASH WHEN THEY NEED IT MOST.

States must pay unemployment benefits "when due." 42 U.S.C. §503(a)(1). Despite the employer's right to appeal and ultimately reverse the determination, the Supreme Court has mandated that the benefits must be paid when the initial determination favorable to the claimant is made.

Chief Justice Burger writing for a unanimous Supreme Court declared:

Unemployment benefits provide <u>cash</u> to a newly unemployed worker 'at a time when otherwise he would have nothing to spend' . . .

* * *

Early payment of insurance benefits serves to prevent a decline in the <u>purchasing power</u> of the unemployed. <u>California Dept. of Human Resources v. Java</u>, 402 U.S. 121, 131-32, 91 S.Ct. 1347, 28 L.Ed.2d 666 (1971) (emphasis added).

Citing this language, the California Supreme Court stated:

Achievement of . . . [Congressional] objectives requires not only prompt payments of benefits . . ., but the free availability to meet current expenditures. (citations omitted.) Simply putting money into the worker's hands will neither alleviate the hardship of unemployment nor maintain purchasing power if that worker feels obligated to hold that sum intact until the final conclusion of the appeal. Gilles v. Dept. of Human Resources Development, 11 Cal.3d 313, 521 P.2d 110 (1974).

California's statute provided notice that repayment would be sought if the claimant was ultimately deemed ineligible. The Court held notice alone could not automatically defeat a defense of equity or good conscience, a defense statutorily allowed pursuant to California statute in repayment and recoupment cases. Notice was merely one relevant factor to be considered in an equitable defense. Other factors included the origin of the overpayment, reliance, and extraordinary hardship that might be caused by the repayment. Furthermore,

[t]o the extent that claimants are induced by that notice to postpone receipt of benefits, or are inhibited from using benefits to maintain their level of consumer purchases, the notice defeats the objectives of the program. (emphasis added.)

Florida claimants are not even given notice that they will be liable for overpayments. Thus, claimants spend their benefit money on necessities to tide themselves over, as Congress intended, only to be faced with a sudden demand for repayment against which there is no defense. It is particularly ironic that while the Division appears to argue that claimants are presumed to know the statute, it does nothing to insure that they do. Failure to even notify claimants of the drastic consequences of subsequently being deemed ineligible, and therefore liable without defense, frustrates the objectives of the Federal statute. At a minimum, claimants must be allowed to explain their individual

^{1.} By statute, California allows such defenses in cases of repayment and recoupment; Florida statutes would allow them only for recoupment actions from future benefits.

circumstances, change in position due to reliance, and ability to epay. To do otherwise would render illusory the "benefits" which the claimant is "paid."

And even if claimants knew, or were deemed to constructively know, that no defense would be allowed, the chilling effect of that knowledge would unnecessarily undercut the Congressional objectives. Unemployment benefits are specially earmarked to be spent, not held in abeyance. Java at 132.

The interpretation of "when due" in Java, as further illuminated by Gilles, compels the conclusion that a State seeking repayment must consider the surrounding circumstances of a claimant's receipt of benefits by a claimant ultimately deemed To exclude these defenses, as the Florida statute ineligible. does in overpayment actions, (but not in actions for recoupment from future benefits), defeats the objectives of the Federal statute: making cash available to claimants in a meaningful way as quickly as possible. As the Third District noted in Saegert v. State Dept. of Labor, 418 So.2d 1228, 1230 (Fla. 3d DCA 1982), "statutes must not be interpreted to achieve an illogical or absurd result. McKibbon v. Mallory, 293 So.2d 48 (Fla. 1974); Good Samaritan Hospital Association v. Simon, 370 So.2d 1174 (Fla. 4th DCA)."

In the case at bar, the Division gave Claimant no notice of the dire consequences of overpayment, a sudden \$4,500 debt; the Claimant gave the Division notice of the very facts which were later used to demand repayment. She was never determined to be reason for the overpayment was her <u>retroactive</u>, and later receipt of Federal worker's compensation benefits. At the least she should be allowed to explain her needs at the time the unemployment benefits were her only income. To deny her that opportunity renders meaningless the Federal mandate that payments be made "when due."²

There are two types of disqualifications from unemployment benefits pursuant to the Florida statute: fault-based and cost-based. §443.101, Fla. Stat. Fault-based reasons include discharge for misconduct, leaving a job voluntarily, failure to seek suitable jobs, criminal or dishonest conduct connected to the job, and fraud. Non-fault based reasons, principally related to keeping down the cost of unemployment insurance, include receipt of pension or worker's compensation benefits (to the extent of those benefits).

The reversal of the Claimant's benefits were due to no fault of the Claimant, and to not allow such claimants the ability to raise a defense of equity or good conscience is grossly unfair and defeats the purpose of the Federal unemployment program: making cash freely available for claimants to spend.

^{2.} Claimant assumes that the Commission agrees that the Supremacy Clause, United States Consitution, Art. VI, §2, mandates that state statutes in conflict with Federal statutes must yield, but argues that the Florida statute does not conflict in this case. (Commission's initial brief at 9.)

CONCLUSION

The ultimate relief sought is the opportunity for Claimant to be able to explain why recovery of benefits in her case would defeat the statutory purpose or be against equity or good conscience. The purpose of the Federal statute, as interpreted by the U.S. Supreme Court in <u>Java</u>, and illuminated by the California Supreme Court in <u>Gilles</u>, requires that the Florida statute be construed to allow those defenses in cases of overpayment as well as recoupment.

Donald M. Papy

Attorney for Joanna W. Cassady

Suite 802

19 West Flagler Street

Miami, Florida 33130

(305) 577-0100